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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Report on the Andit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nuvama Wealth and lovestment Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (*the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of [ndia
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context,

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, inciuding the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters How our audif addressed the key audit matter

IT Systems and Controls Our audit procedures focused on the [T infrastructure and

applications relevant to financial reporting of the Company

inchuded following:

s Tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s IT access controls, including audit trail, over
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Key audit matters

reliant on IT systems and IT conirols to
process significant transaction volumes.

Automated accounting procedures and [T
environment controls, which include IT
governance, general IT controls over program
development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are

the information systems that are important to financial
reporting and various interfaces, configuration and other
identified application controls.

Tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls). This
included testing requests for access to systems were
reviewed and authorized.

o Tested the Company’s periodic review of access rights.
Also tested requests of changes to systems for approval
and authorization.

+ In addition to the above, tested the design and operating
effectiveness of certain automated controls that were
considered as key internal controls.

¢ Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls in case deficiencies were identified
and, where necessary, extended the scope of our
substantive audit procedures.

required to be designed and to operate
effectively to ensure reliable financial
reporting,

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general 1T controls and the
application  controls  specific to the
accounting and preparation of the financial
information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

Otheér Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

»  Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. [f we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. OQur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro! that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these maiters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 17 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this
report;

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements — Refer Note 41 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 62 {A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds} by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
note 62 (B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this
audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
(refer Note 65 to the financial statements). Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior
year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for records.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLLP
Chartered Accountanis
qiﬂd Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Lot P

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 25102102BMOBGA2941

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIRMENTS” OF OUR REPORT QOF EVEN DATE

Re: Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (*the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that:

(i)(a){A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(i)a){(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(i)(b)  Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{(i)(¢)  There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{i){(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i)(d) . The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

{(i)(e)  There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

(ii}a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)b)  As disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs, five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the unaudited/audited books of accounis of the Company.

(iif)(a} During the year the Company has provided loans, guarantees, advances in the nature of loans to
companies or other parties as follows:
Rs. in million
Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount granted/
provided during the year

- Companies or Other parties NA NA 2,30,396.28 NA
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date* .
- Companies or Other parties NA NA 14,325.85 NA
*Balance outstanding is total outstanding (including unamortized processing fees) as at March 31, 2025

(iif)(b) During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans to companies or any other parties are
not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(iti){c) In respect of loans granted to companies, or other parties, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following
cascs:
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(Rs. in million)

Name of the Entity

Amount

Due date

Extent of delay

Remarks, if any

Various parties
(ESOP loans)

9.54

11-03-2025 to
28-03-2025

3 to 20 days

ESOP Loans has been
renewed or repaid after
March 31, 2025 as per
original loan

. agreements entered
into with the borrower.

There are no amounts of loans granted to companies or any other parties which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

(iii)(d)

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(iii)(e)

During the year, the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnierships or any other parties as stated below and none of these are granted to promoters or related
parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iif)(H

{Rs. in million}
All Parties

Particulars

Agegregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of
loans

- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the
total loans

11,583.52

5.03%

The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is interested to
which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not commented upon.
Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of sections 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security have been complied with
by the Company.

(iv)

In respect of deposits accepted or amounts which are deemed to be deposits, directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under, to the extent applicable, have been complied with,
We are informed by the management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board, National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

v

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the products/ services of the Company.

(vi)

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the yvear end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(vii)(a)

As informed, the provision of sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, wealth tax and value added tax
are currently not applicable to the Company.
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(vii)(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
service tax, cess and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The
dues outstanding in respect of income tax and goods and service tax on account of dispute, are as follows:

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)
(ix)(d)

(ix)(e)

(Rs. in million)

Period to
which the
Nature of amount Forum where dispute is

Name of Statute dues Amount | relates pending
Income-tax Act, 1961 Income-tax 13.98 | FY 2012-13 | CIT(A)
Income-tax Act, 1961 Income-tax 1.74 | FY 2016-17 | CIT(A)
Income-tax Act, 1961 [ncome-tax 56.71 | FY 2022-23 | CIT(A)
Goods and Service Tax Act, FY 2018- Appellate Authority —
2017 GST (Delhi) 19.2 © 19% Delhi
Goods and Service Tax Act, | GST FY 2019- Appellate Authority —
2017 (Raipur) 0.63 | 20% Raipur
Goods and Service Tax Act, FY 2019- Appellate Authority —
2017 GST (Delhi) 0.50 ] 20* Delhi
Goods and Service Tax Act, | GST (Uttar FY 2019- Appellate Authority —
2017 Pradesh) 1.03 | 20* Uttar Pradesh
Goods and Service Tax Act, | GST (West FY 2020- Appellate Authority —
2017 Bengal) 0.10 | 21* West Bengal
Goods and Service Tax Act, | GST FY 2020- Appellate Authority —
2017 (Telangana) 1.27 | 21* Telangana
Goods and Service Tax Act, | Goods and Jul'l7 to Palghar
2017 Service Tax 3.53 | Mar'22 Commissionerate

As informed, the provision of sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, wealth tax and value added tax
are currently not applicable to the Company.

*During the year/previous years, the Company has deposited Rs. 1.08 million under protest in connection
with a dispute with GST authorities.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the boecks of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3{viii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3({ix)(e} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to

report on Clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{x)(=)

(x)}(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi}b)

(xi)c)

(xii)(a)

(xii)(b)

{xii)c)

(xiii}

(xiv)(a)
(xiv)(b}

(xv)

{xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

Buring the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaint received by the Company during the year
while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii}(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}e) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of

India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{xvi)(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group as at March 31, 2025, hence, the requirement

xvii}

to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively.
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(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 50 (2) to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)}a) Inrespect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso
to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 34 (b) to the financial
statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special
account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 34 (b) to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Qe 2—

per Sl;rawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 25102102BMOBGA2941

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NUVAMA WEALTH AND INVESTMENT LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nuvama Wealth and
Investment Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal conirol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in alf material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

Page 11 of 12
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Chartered Accountants

unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management ovetride of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For 8.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

rab”/&}""‘

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 25102102BMOBGAZ2941

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 27, 2025
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflion)

As at As at
Notes ptarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 587.41 907.34
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 27,554.09 7,699.79
[c) Derivative financial instruments 4 862.18 1,255.24
{d} Securities held for trading 5 6,053.97 1,363.82
(e} Trade receivables [ 4,846.23 4,396.91
{f) Loans 7 14,294,756 18,081.71
(&} Investments 8 142.46 -
[h) Other financiai assets 9 2,281.55 23,536.79
Total financial assets 56,622.65 57,241.60
Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 10 66.83 196.53
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 11 79.20 100.18
[c) Property, Plant and Equipment 12 1,003.94 814.15
[d} Intangible assets . 13 225.82 268.70
{e) Intangible assets under development 14 40,24 66.07
{f} Other non-financial assets i5 162.59 110.98
Total non-financial assets 1,578.62 1,556.61
TOTAL ASSETS 58,201.27 58,798.21
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
{a) Derivative financial instrurents a 230.11 314.66
{b) Trade payables 16
{i} Total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 60.31 67.85
{ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 18,241.19 17,849.77
enterprises
(c) Debt securities 17 22,937.78 23,486.86
(d) Borrowings {other than debt securities) 18 5,609,23 6,130.63
{e} Cther financial liabilities 19 1,864.57 1,533,59
Taotal financial liabilities 48,943.19 49,383.36
Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current tax liabilities {net) 20 33.03 125.77
{b) Provisions 21 68.76 37.79
(c) Other non-financia! labilities 22 711,93 635.02
Total non-financial liabilities 813.72 798,58
EQUITY
{a} Equity share capital . M 23 4,304.54 4,304,54
{b) Other equity 24 4,139.82 4,311.73
Total equity 8,444,36 8,616.27
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 58,201.27 58,798.21
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1-66
As per our report of even date attached
For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behaif of] pard of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Al Rirm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
.
A L |
2

per Shrawan Jafan

Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Alok Saigal

Executive Director
DIN: 08543458

Snehd Patwdrdhan
Lompany Secretary

Mumtsai Mumbai
_ May 27,2025 May 27, 2025
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2025

{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Dividend income

Fee and commission income
Net gain on fair vaiue changes
Total Revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Fee and commission expense

Other expenses

Total expenses
Profit before tax
Tax expenses (refer note 35b )
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or [oss
Remezsurement {loss)/ gain on defined benefit ptans
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs,10 each):
(1} Basic {Rs.)
{2} Diluted (Rs.}
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Mumbai
May 27, 2025

MNotes

25
26
27
28

29

30
31
32
12,13
33
34

36

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

8,371.82 3,525.10
. 0.31
11,699.22 10,526.71
765.93 758.00
16,836.97 14,810.12
53.59 13.50
16,890.56 14,823.62
3,004.18 2,583.32
75.96 243.06
6,022.34 4,717.03
399,19 311.87
2,412.30 2,427.18
2,421,10 2,156.82
14,335.07 12,439.28
2,555.49 2,384.34
830.67 659.85
20,98 (52.50)
1,903.84 1,776.99
(24.79) 167
(6.24) 0.42
{18.55) 1.25
1,885.29 1,778.24
4.42 4.13
4.42 4.13
For and on behalf &f theBoard of pffectors
Alok Saigal
Executive Director

DIN: 08543458

al Gandhi
xXecutive Director Chigf Financial Officer
DIN:{ (7789972

-
Sneha Pavardhan
Company Secretary

Mumkai
May 27, 2025




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Currency : indicn rupees in million)

Cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Profit before taxation 2,555.49 2,384.34
Adjustments for:

Depreciation, amoertisaticn and impairement (refer note jii below ) 426.42 332.06
Provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Trade receivables, Impairment on 75.96 243.06
financial and non financial assets

Fair Value gain on securities held for trading {54.92) {46.60}
Fair value gain on Investments {0.11) -
Loss on sale/ write-off of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (net) 0.81 2.47
Profit on termination of leases {11.61) (1.19)
Provision for Compensated absences 8.12 6.15
Finance costs, incl. Bank guarantee commission 3,006.91 2,586.30
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 6,007.07 5,506.59
Add/ (less): Adjustments for working capital changes

{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables (740.12) 974.42
{Increase)/ decrease in securities held for trading (4,635.24) 1,712.78
Decrease/ (increase) in fixed deposits, loans and other financial assets 5,341.78 (16,016.19)
Decrease in other non financial assets 163.77 35.47
Increase in trade payables and other financial liabilities 471,93 4,852.80
Increase in provisions and other non-financial liabilities 74.97 47.43
Cash flow generated from/ (used in) operations 6,684.16 (2,886.70}
Income tax paid {net of refund) 587.47 579.61
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities - A 6,096.69 (3.466.31)
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (134.70) (137.27)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 2.16 0.40
Purchase of investments {142.35) -
Net cash used in investing activities - B (274.89) {136.87}
Cash flow from financing activities

Praceeds from secured term loan (net) (refer note if befow ) 1,750.00 1,630.51
Proceeds from/ {repayment of} unsecured term loan and bank overdraft (net} {2,264.36) 1,274.36
(refer note i below )*

Proceeds from issue of debt securities 22,649.30 28,822.46
Repayment of debt securities (22,940.12) (25,692.00)
Dividend paid cn equity shares (2,087.70) -
Finance costs (2,940.53) (2,493.42)
Interest paid on lease liability (refer note iv below) {86.57) {56.53)
Principal repayment of lease liability {221.75) {190.34)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities - € (6,141.73) 3,295.04
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {319.593) (308.14)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,215.48
Cash and cash eguivalents as at the end of the year 907.34




Nuvama Whealth and Investment Limited

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miltion)

Notes:

i. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 'Cash Flow Statements'
specified under Section 133 of Companies Act ,2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

ii. Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

jii. Depreciation and amortisation is gross of reimbursement received of Rs. 27.22 millien for the year ended March 31, 2025 (P.Y. Rs. 19.26
million).

iv. Interest expenses on lease liabilities is gross of reimbursement received of Rs. 8.80 million for the year ended March 31, 2025 (P.Y. Rs. 4.97
million).

v. Refer note 40 for change in liabilities arising from financing activities.

vi. Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 587.41 907.34
587.41 807.34

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behal the Board of Directors
Chortered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
hegu" 31— ==

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Membership No.: 102102

Alok Saigal
Executive Director
DIN: 08543458

.‘\
Shegtal Gandhi
Non|Executive Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN:07789972

nehd Patwirdhan

Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
May 27, 2025 May 27, 2025
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Currency : Indion rupees in million)

a) Equity share capital o of Shares Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2024 43,04,54,000 4,304.54
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting year 43,04,54,000 4,304.54
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 43,04,54,000 4,304.54
Equity share capital as at April 61, 2023 43,04,54,000 4,304,549
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - -
Restated bajance at the beginning of the current reporting year 43,04,54,000 4,304,545
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2024 43,04,54,000 4,3204,54
b) Other equity

) éef:urities premium | Deemed cavy;viial ! Debenture ! Retained Earnings : “'Iltv:tal

{refer note a below) ' contribution - ESOP - Redemption Reserve | {refer note d below)
! (refer note b below)  {refer note ¢ below) | '
558970 - 132.93 ' 3,579.10 . 4,311.73

Balance as at April 01, 2024

Profit for the year - - - 190384 1,902.84 .
ot prehensive income e - ey i (1855 {18.55).
‘T-olal Compreﬁ"enslvelncome for thé \;;aF o - - - 1,885.29 1,885.20
R;ueE;I;:fESlSP cost on cancellation of options . - . - 30.50 . 30.50
‘Trans.f;rﬂfrr’c;m Debenture Redempticn Reserve to : - - T R o [41.99]: o 4199 ’ -
Retained ings ' :
‘Interim dividend paid e o (2087.70)
‘Balance as at March 31, 2025 599.70 - 50.94 3,409,18 4,139,82
e as at April 01, 2023 599.70 : 2942 0783 163353 248048
Profit far the year ) ) o - . oo 1,776.98 1,776.99
IDthér éa;ﬁrehensive income o o - ) B - ' T - 1.25 ' ) :lZSAI
' rehensive Income for the year . - . 1,778.24 1,778.24
Reversal of ESOP cast on cancellation of n-ptié-r-i; - - - 5301 53.01
“Transfer from Daemed capizal ESOP 1o Retaired . T o [ L
jearnings _

Transfer from D;iaenturékedemptlcn Re'sér\-r-emfa ’ o .0 B

589.70 - 132,93 3,579.10 ¢ 4,311.73

Notes:
a) Securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to racord the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions
of the Companles Act, 2013.

b) Deemed capital contribution - ESOP
Deemed capital contribution relates to share opticns granted to aligible employees of the Company by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ('EFS1'} being erstwhile
Ultimate Parent Company, under its employee share option plan.

¢) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Debenture Redemnption Reserve represents reserves created as per the Companies Act, 2013 w.r.t. cutstanding redeemable debentures cut of frea reserves. The
amounts credited to the Debenture Redemption Reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures, On redemption of debentures, the amount will be
transferred from Debenture Redemption Reserve to retained earnings,

d) Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributad earnings after taxes and dividend distribution,

As per our report of even date attached

Far and on behalf of the Byg gf Directors

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
L!CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/£300005

fﬁ_ﬂ” is‘

per Shrawan lalan

Kabg] lain

- ok Saigal
Managing Direchbr & CEQ

Executive Director
DiN: 08543458

Partner
Membership No.,: 102102

) Executive Director
: 07789972

Lompany Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
May 27, 2025 May 27, 2025
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Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

i1

12

1.3

Corporate Information:

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (“the Company”} was incorporated on February 7, 2008. The
Company is a 200% subsidiary of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited. PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Limited Is the
Ultimate Holding Company of the Company. The registered office is located at 8th Floor, 801-804, Wing A,
Building No. 3, Inspire BKC, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai 400051.

The Company is registered as a trading member with National Stock Exchange of India Limited {“NSEIL’},
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (‘BSE’) and Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited ('MSEI’), Multi
Commodity Exchange of india Limited ("MCX'}, National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited
(‘'NCDEX’} and provides broking services to the clients. The Company is also registered as Depository
Participant with National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’), Central Depository Services {India) Limited
{‘CDSL’) and is also registered as Repository Participant with National E-Repository Limited (‘NERL’) and
Countrywide Commodity Repository Limited (‘CCRL’) (formally known as CDSL Commaodity Repository
Limited). The Company is registered as Research Analyst with Securities and Exchange Board of India {‘SEBI')
and corporate agent {Composite) with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of india ('[RDAI').
The Company is also a distributor for various financial products such as Mutual Funds, Bonds, Debentures,
Portfolio Management Services (‘PMS’) and Alternative Investment fund (‘AlF’) etc.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS} notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended
from time to time). These financial statements have heen approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company on May 27, 2025.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees {Rs.} in millions, except when otherwise indicated.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its Balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division Ill of the
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months
after the reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current} is
presented in note 39,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an uncenditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business
e  The event of default
+ The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notestot

he financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.3 Pre

sentation of financial statements (Continued)

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and
Derivatives Association}] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the
above criteria and not just in the event of default.

Materiai accounting policies

1.4 Revenue recognition

1.4.1 Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts

coll

ected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contracts and its customary

business practices to determine the transaction price. Where the consideration promised is variable, the
Company excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are constrained. The Company applies the

five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

i) Identification of contract({s) with customers;

ii) Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

iii) Determination of transaction price;

iv} Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
v} Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied

The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

a.

b.

f.

Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rates at the point in time when transaction’s
performance obligation is satisfied on behalf of the customers on the trade date. Subscription based
income is recognised when the performance obligation has been satisfied.

Depository services income are accounted as follows:
Annual Maintenance Charges are accounted for over the period of the performance obligation.

Transaction charges is recognised point in time when the performance obligation is satisfied.

Fee income including referral fees and commission income is accounted on an accrual basis as per Ind
AS 115 in accordance with the terms and contracts entered with the client.

Commissions from distribution of financial products are recognised upon allotment of the securities
to the applicant and upon successful log in of application alongwith payment of initial contribution.

Delayed payment charges (Interest on late payments) are accounted at a point in time of default and
on certainty of realisation.

Research services fee income is accounted when there is reasonable certainty as to its receipts.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.4

1.4.2

1.43

1.5

Revenue recognition {Continued)
Interest income:

Interest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’). The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial assets through the expected life of the financial asset
or, where appropriate, a shorter pericd, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal
rate of return on financial assets after netting off the fee received and cost incurred approximates the
effective interest rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking
into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss
allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the
amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for
ECLs).

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Financial Instruments
a) Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.
This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company
recognises borrowings when funds are received by the Company.

b} Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied
the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in
section 1.4.1 Revenue from contracts with customers.




Nuvama Wealth and tnvestment Limited
Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)

¢} Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In
those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

1.6 Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

+ Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount cutstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in
profit and loss account.

e  Financiai assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Afinancial asset is measured at FVTOCIif it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income.

s  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The

Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.7

Financial assets and financial liabilities

a) Amortized cost and Effective interest method (EIR)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

b} Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for shart-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial
instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit
is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

¢) Financial assets at fair value through profit or joss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been
either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition
when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument by instrument
basis.

* The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses an them on a different basis;
or

* The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or

¢ The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify
the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or na analysis
when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivativels) is
prohibited.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value, Changes in
fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities
designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’'s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the own credit reserve through OCl and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned
or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively,
using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral
part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded
using contractual interest rate.

d) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and
derivative financial liabilities.

e) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate, market risk.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting peried. The resulting gain or foss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would
be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate or
other variable, provided that, in case of a non-financial variabie, it is not specific to a party to the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at
fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss,
unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

f) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt securities issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds,
and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of

_ specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {Continued)

derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair
valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt
compenent of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

g) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognized at the proceeds
received.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or [oss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

Derecognition of financial instruments
a) Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:;

e  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated lizbility for the amount it may have to pay.
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Derecognition of financial instruments (Continued)
a) Derecognition of financial asset (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount aliocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i} the consideration
received {including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and {ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss (except for equity instruments measured
at FVOCH).

b) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. In this case, a new
financial liabitity based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognised in profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit loss (‘ECL') for all financial assets, other than financial
assets held at FVTPL together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. Equity instruments
are not subject to impairment.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables and Margin Trading Facility {"MTF} . The application of simplified approach does not require
the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime (Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company
uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables.

General approach

For ESOP funding, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk ('SICR’) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the

Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses {12 month ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
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Impairment of financial assets {Continued)

is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD) {i.e. it is an estimate of the likelihood
of default over a given time horizon), loss given default {LGD) {i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default (EAD). The assessment of the PD and LGD is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the EAD, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined

based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its ESOP funding and Receivables towards Margin Trading funding as follows:
Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. For these assets lifetime ECL are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:

Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The
method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

For all other financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and zil the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company recognises an
impairment gain or foss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company fakes
into account qualitative and guantitative reasonable and supportable forward-locking information,
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of Financial assets

The measurement of impairment fosses across all categories of financial assets reguires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimaies include:

¢  PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

» The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and the
qualitative assessment.

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.
e Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

s Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD.

o Selection of forward-looking macro economic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the econemic inputs into the ECL models

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, and letters of guarantees. Collateral, unless
repossessed, is not recorded on the balance sheet. However, the fair vaiue of collateral affects the
calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a pericdical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margin requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.
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Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lizbility in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assurming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,

maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order
to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of

valuation techniques, as summarised helow:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization {based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period. The Company
periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model
calibrations.
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Determination of fair value {Continued)

» Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its
financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates
the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to
reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leases

Company as a lessee:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises [ease liabilities to make lease
payments and right of use assets representing the right of use the underlying assets.

Right of Use Asset

The Company recognizes right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right of use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

Lease Liahilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments inchude fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease [fabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change
in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended March 31, 2025

1.14

1.15

Leases (Continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses {unless they
are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

Incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate {'IBR’) to measure lease lizbilities. Incremental borrowing rate is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic
environment.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption
to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the |eased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of
the lease.

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with ind AS 33 - Earnings Per
Share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

For the purpose of EPS, the potential ordinary shares that wouid be issued on conversion are included in
the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS (and, therefore, also
diluted EPS) from the date of issue of the instrument, since their issue is solely dependent on the passage

of time.
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1.17

Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Company.
Transactions in currencies other than indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies} are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC| or profit or loss are also recognised in OCt or profit
or loss, respectively).

Retirement and other employee benefit

Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted te determine
its present value, and the fair value of any plan assetis, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company approved by insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority {IRDA).
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Retirement and other employee benefit (Continued)

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in netinterest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave
entitiement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the statement
of profit and foss and corresponding liability on such accumulated leave entitlement based on & valuation
by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected
unit credit method,

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees by the Holding Company Nuvama Wealth Management
Limited {'NWML') and by the erstwhile Ultimate Parent Company Edelweiss Financial Service Limited
("EFSL’) are measured by reference to the fair value of the ecuity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of Equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant date is expensed over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive
the difference between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the Holding Company on the
date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the Holding Company, is at the
discretion of the Holding Company. These are classified as equity settled share-based transaction.

In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats each
instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair
value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment and Right of Use Asset

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives. Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended
use. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.
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1.19 Property, plant and equipment and Right of Use Asset (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule Il for calculating
the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

vehicles Byears

S Equapl;nent s e st o i i 5 yeare

Computers and data processing units — Servers and networks _ 6 years

wCor'r;puters - €nd user devices, such as deskwtlaﬁg, laptoﬁg etc. 3years

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment and intangible asset recognised as of April 01, 2017 (transition date} measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Right of use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of financial
position - refer to the accounting policy 1.14. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis at
the lower of lease term or useful life.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the period of lease whichever is earlier.

1.20 Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is
recognized only when its cost can be measured refiably and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.
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Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Fellowing initiat
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

intangibles such as software is amortized over a period of upto 5 years based on its estimated useful life.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal {i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful life

Computer software 3 -5years

Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets under Development includes Software under development.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are

recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

L The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale.

ii. Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

iil. How the asset will generate future economic benefits

iv. The availability of resources to complete the asset

v, The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accurnulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when
development is complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Comapny
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.
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1.24

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits are with an original maturity of three months or less,
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legai or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the abligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the ohligation.

A contingent liability is:

{2} a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

(b} a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

{i} it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; or

(i} the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence
from similar incidents.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settie the obligation, the provision
is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statement. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are
recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

a} Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current
income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
-gther comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlatian to the underlying
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1.24 Income tax expenses (Continued)

transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

b} Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things,
reflect the potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of
production as a result of measures to reduce carbon emission.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. Acguired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related
to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at
the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goadwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax henefits are
recognised in OC!/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All other
acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceabie
right to set off current tax assets and current tax lizbilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
-..different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
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Income tax expenses {(Continued)

realise the assets and settle the {iabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

a} Actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit plans.

b) Assumptions used on discounted cash flows, growth rate and discount rate to justify the
value of management rights reported under intangible assets.

¢) Assumptions used in estimating the useful lives of tangible assets reported under property,
plant and equipment.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest ('SPPF) and the business model test. The Company determines the business mode] at
a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of these assets are
compensated.

The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent

with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate, whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.
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1.25

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or
stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
Recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an assest has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The foliowing are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in accounting policy 1.13 g, recognizes interest income/
expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected behavioral life of financial instruments and recognizes the effect of characteristics of the product
life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expecied behavioral and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

Incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate ("IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. incremental borrowing rate is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observahle
or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using
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1.25

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in
establishing fair values. ludgements and estimates include considerations of liguidity and model inputs
related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation
and volatility.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal enviranment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company -
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates. For
detailed note please refer to the accounting policies in section 1.23 “Provisions and other contingent
liabilities”.

Share based payments

Estimating fair value for share based payment requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model. The estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the option , volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.
The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions are
discussed in the accounting policies in section 1.18 "Share-based payment arrangements”.

Expected Credit loss (‘ECL’)

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and credit assessment and including forward looking
information. The inputs used and process followed by the Company in determining the ECL have been
detailed in the accounting policies in section 1.9 "Impairment of financial assets”.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences hetween the tax bases of assets and liahilities and their
carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during
the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. The Company considers the expected

reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. The
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1.25 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

amount of the deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced. For detailed note please
refer to the accounting policies in section 1.24b “Deferred tax”.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For detailed note please refer to the
accounting policies in section 1.17 “Retirement and other employee benefit”.

Leases

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an
underlying asset including optional periods, when an entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend {or not to terminate) a lease. The Company consider all relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease term. The option
to extend the lease term are included in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise
the option. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur
that are within the control of the lessee.

1.26 Standards issued and effective:

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024. The Company has not early adopted any standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated
August 12, 2024, under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is
effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024,

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104
Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities
that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach}

* A simplified approach {the premium allocation approach} mainly for short-duration contracts

-
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1.26

1.27

Standards issued and effective (Continued):

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company's separate financial
statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered
under Ind AS 117.

{ii) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which
amend (nd AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leasehack.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain
or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of Ind AS 116.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements,
Standards notified but not yet effective:

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in miflion)

3a.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash en hand

Balances with banks
-in current accounts

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits with banks (refer note 3a below)
Accrued interest on fixed deposits

Note :
i) Fixed deposit balances with banks earns interest at fixed rate.

Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company

Fixed deposit pledged with exchange to meet margin requirements
Fixed deposit pledged with bank for securing overdraft, Working Capital
Demand Loan{'WCDL"), intraday facilities and bank guarantees

Fixed deposit pledged with exchanges towards arbitration

Derivative financial instruments

Breakup of Derivative financial instruments

Fair Value Assets (refer note 4a and 4b)

Premium paid on outstanding exchange traded options
Embedded derivatives in market linked debentures {asset}

Fair Value Liabilities (refer note 4a and 4b )

Premium received on outstanding exchange traded options
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures (liabilities)

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

587.41 907.34
587.41 907.34
27,168.88 7,555.77
385.21 144.02
27,554.09 7,699.79
18,186.68 3,274.48
8,950.78 4,251.50
31.42 29.79
27,168.88 7,555.77
637.79 792.22
224.39 463.02
862.18 1,255.24
153.58 244.64
76.53 70.02
230.11 314.66
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{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

4a  Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for risk management purposes. These include hedges that either meet the hedge accounting requirements or
hedges that are economic hedges, but the Company has elected not to apply hedge accounting requirements.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amaunts/

units held,
As at March 31, 2025
. Notional
particulars Unit Notional units*  Fair value asset Unit anits* Fair value liabitity
(i) Embedded derivatives** h ) - :

In market linked debentures | 22439 76.53
Subtotal {i) 224.39 | 76,53
(i) Equity linked derivatives

Stock Futures Numbers 18,44,780 10.18  MNumbers 11,38,342 56.53

Options purchased Numbers 29,56,322 184.91 : -

Options sold (written} - Numbers 29,56,122 . 35,09

Less: Offset with Margin {10.18}): (56.53)
Subtotal [ii) 184.91 - 35.09
{ifi) Index linked derivatives ] ;

Index Futures  Index Units . 2,07,525 35.63 Index Units = 73,725 | 9.82

Options purchased " Index Units ; 3,31,065 | 452.88 | ‘ -

Options sold (written) ‘ - | Index Units 3,31,065 118.49

Less: Offset with Margin (35.63) (5.82)
Subtotat (i) 452.88 118.49
{iv) Commadity linked derivatives '

Commodity Futures * Commodity B R

. Units
Options purchased Commodity | - -
Units :
Options sold (written) Commaodity | . -
Units

Less: Offset with Margin -
Subtotal {iv) - N
Total Derivative Financial Instruments Total 862.18 ! Total 230,11
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{Currency : Indign rupees in million)

4a

Derivative financial instruments (Continued }

Particulars

{i) Embedded derivatives**
Irs market linked debentures

Subtotal {i}

(i} Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures
Options purchased
Options sold (written)
Less: Offset with Margin

Subtotal {ii}

{iit) Index linked derivatives
Index Futures
Options purchased
Options sold {written)
Less: Offset with Margin

Subtatal {iii}

Commodity Futures
Options purchased
Options sold (written)

Less: Offset with Margin

Subtotal {iv)

{iv) Commodity linked derivatives

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

__Asat March 31, 2024

Unit ‘Notional units*; Fair value asset Unit : unl'tsn‘a : Fair value liability
S : —— . I,, S S
463.02 . 70.02
463.02 70.02
Numbers 21,03,731 - 28.20 1 Numbers 13,07,049 7.78
Numbers 33,79,938 112.78 | ‘
i Numbers 33,06,038 89.13
(28.20) {(7.78)
112.78 89.13
Index Units ' 1,84,745 34,79 Index Units 1,161 004
Index Units 2,40,365 679.44 | .
- IndexUnits  3,15,797 153.26
{34.79) {0.04)
679.44 153.26
; Commodity 1911.00 0.47
Units
Commodity R .
Units ;
Commodity . 12948.00 2.25
Units
{0.47)
- 2.25
Total 1,255.24 | Total 314.66

* The national column represents guantity in case of Equity and Index linked derivatives. The notional/ units held indicate the value of transactions
outstanding at the year end and are not indicative of either the market risk or credit risk.

**An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
5  Securities held for trading
(at fair value through profit and loss account, within India)

Equity shares 131.18 351.44
Mutual funds 4,477.26 664.86
Alternate Investment Funds {'AIF) 87.07 -
Debt securities 1,358.46 347.52
6,053.97 1,363.82

Securities pledged with exchanges amounts to Rs. 1,171.15 million (previous year Rs. 833.71 million) to meet
margin requirements. Please refer note 45 - Financial assets available to support future funding
Please refer note 46 - Fair value measurement for valuation methodology for securities held for trading.

&  Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Secured 1,387.42 1,253.63
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 3,472.35 3,151.87
Receivables - Credit impaired 217.41 . 155,08
5,077.18 4,560.58

Less : impairment allowance
Receivables - Considered good - Unsecured 13.54 8.59
Receivables - Credit impaired 217.41 155.08

4,846.23 4,396.91
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)}

{Currency : Indian rupees in milflion)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
7 Loans
(Considered good, unless stated otherwise)
ESOP loans 5,128.02 9,327.70
Margin trading facility 9,170.00 8,757.77
Total Gross 14,298.02 18,085.47
Less : Impairment allowance (3.26) {3.76)
Total Net 14,294.76 18,081.71
i) Secured
ESOP loans 5,047.00 8,576.98
Margin trading facility 9,169.84 8,757.74
Total {i} 14,216.84 17,734.72
ii} Unsecured
ESOP loans 81.02 350.72
Margin trading facility 0.16 0.03
Total (i} 81.18 350.75
Total Gross (i)+{ii) 14,298.02 . 18,085.47
Less : Impairment allowance (3.26) (3.76)
Total Net 14,294.76 18,081.71
Loans in Indig
Public sector - -
Others 14,298.02 18,085.47
Total Gross 14,298.02 18,085.47
Less : Impairment allowance (3.26) (3.76)
Total Net 14,294.76 18,081.71

Please refer note 17a - For charge created on debt securities

Notes:

1} During the year, the Company has not advanced or given loans or invested funds {either borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other gerson{s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediary shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on
behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

2) There are no loans due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly
with any other persons or amounts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a
partner or a director or a member.

3) There are no lvans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs or related parties {as
defined under Companies Act, 2013,} either severally or jointly with any other person, that are:

(a) repayable on demand; or

(b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

4} The Company provides ESOP loans to its customers which are secured by the shares issued under ESOP plan.

e loans have a tenure of 12 months from the date of disbursement further extendable for a period upto 12

ﬁ/\_}_@;@@ a5 agreed between both the pariies, provided the interest dues have been fully serviced by the
Ny custﬁh:\é,p <




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

Currency : Indion rupees in million)
As at

March 21, 2025

8  Enwvestments
{at foir value through profit end loss account, within India}

Investment in Alternative Investment Funds ('AlF')

Face Value  Quantity Amount
Nuvama Crossover Opportunities Fund — Series Hli 10 38,97,189 47.70
Nuvara Crossover Opportunities Fund - Sertes Il A 10 41,95,717 41,10
Nuvama Crossover Opportunities Fund - Serfes Il B 10 29,83,699 33.56
Nuvama Crossover Yield Opportunities Fund 10 15,00,000 15.06
Nuvama Crossover Opportunities Fund - Series 4 A 10 4,99,900 5.04

1,30,76,505 142.46

Face Value Quantity

As at
March 31, 2024

Amount




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

9  Other financial assets
Rental deposits

Other deposits
Less: Impairment on other deposits

Deposits placed with exchange/ depositories
Less: Impairment on exchange deposits

Receivable from exchange (net}

Margin with exchange/ clearing house*

Accrued Interest on Margin placed with clearing house
Other assets**

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

159.50 134.00
6.30 6.89
(3.82) (2.20)
34.29 33.58
(1.50) (2.08)
904.85 954.39
1,132.63 21,978.56
10.62 263.36
38.68 170.29
2,281.55 23,536.79

*Includes margin placed with exchange and with Professional clearing member

**Includes loans to employees and other receivables

[ <2




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

10

11

Current tax assets {net)

Advance income taxes
{net of provision for tax Rs. 463.74 million {P.Y. Rs. 463.74 million))

Deferred tax assets (net) (refer note 35 c)

Deferred tax assets
Trade receivables, Loans, other financial assets and other non financial

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

assets
Expected credit losses and impairment
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation

Employee benefit obligations
Provision for compensated absences

Lease Liabilities
Others

Deferred tax liabilities

Financial instruments
Fair valuation of securities held for trading/ derivative instruments/

Investments

Borrowings
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on borrowings

Right of Use assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

66.83 196.53
66.83 196.53
60.28 97.42
18.98 10.20
8.66 6.61
242.83 195.75
7.87 3.58
338.62 313.56
21.21 14.14
18.94 22.67
219.27 176.57
259.42 213.38
79.20 100.18




afiginaidap 1aN 'sauedwod dnosd s 31 wouy Juawdinba pue ued

{ Zrr 310U 13fa1) “5807 73 JJOUd JO JUILDILIS Ul PRusadal 5| {uolw 07" mwma
‘Aypradoud Jo 38esn 204 (UOIHLW G7'FT 'SH "A "d) UOI|[IW 22 LT S O3 SUIUNOLIE UDIIESILOWIE pue uoneaItap PRIBADIAL SBY >cmanE{ mw?

Y f&

3 HF

STYIg LT'ETH 69°€ZT 9T OrrsL TELTL'T 96'6ET EbILS 98'S6Z'T [2loL
95104 SLY0L TE'81 £TV6T £R'8TG TE90¥'T 0LTE 9£°L18 59'0Z6 [01r a30u J3ga4) sasiwaLd ployases) - 53355 5N 40 WDy
75'8E 96°L0T 90'v8 L6V S0'£9T 8¥9vT 8L'98 796 Y9'ETT s1a3ndwo’
£5°7T 66T STST 659 59'8¢ ZETY £5°9T S8 05'6Y auidnba sayg
50°0 oo - 100 6T°0 szT0 100 - 9Z'0 53(MYIA
vTET 08'9T Lot LSE orrt ¥0'0€ 7zt 55’9 29T S2UN)XE) pUE ainyuing
ST'8 {95 09y GT'ET 86"y T6'I0T 487 12T &0°LL SJUBLIBAGIAWI ploysses
Y07 "TE Yoiep bZOZ ‘1€ yMew seak ay} sIERA €202 ‘T |ndy YE0Z "TE Y3lew 1284 3y} dgsA ayy €20T 'T [udy
1e sy e sy Juunp sjesodsig ay) Aoy adueys 1B SY 1e S5y Suunp sjesedsig  Supnp suoippy 1E sy $1955y Jo uondudsag
0|9 30N uojieasdag pajenuwnasy Y201g 5010
+6'€00°T TS'LGTT veos 6562 LTETG 9Y'1912 85077 69°75S TELTLT |eroL
€718 80°616 EV'9E 947052 SLY0L TE06L'T LLE0T LLL8Y TE90F'T (2tr 210U Ja)4) sasuuaud pjoyases| - 513558 35N Jo B
87°GE vLLTT 859 9£91 96°£01 Z0°8PT 58 90°01 8'9yT siandwod
(95T I8vE 62T 44" 6L'6C &Y 0% 05T 196 ZETW 1uawdinbd 3010
s0'0 0z°0 - - 0z'0 ST0 - - . sT'0 SADEYRA
LT EF'ST €9'T STy 0897 ¥59E S0Z sS'g Y008 S3UNIXES PUE BINJUINY
0969 S'99 1y 6L9T LIES 58'SEL Ly ¥9'8E Z6'TOT SluBwancidi ployaseat
S70Z “TE Y2Iew $20Z 'TE uHew 1ead ayy +1B2A #202 ‘T |Wdy ST0T ‘T€ y2aaew Jedhayy 1eah ayy ¥202 ‘1 [ty
1e sy 1e sy Sunnp spesodsig By 104 adaeyn 18 5y 1e 5y Bupnp siesodsig  Juunp suoippy 1e sy $1955y Jo uondudsaq
3208 19N uonyenasdag palenwniay #I0|g $5049

wawdinb3y pue jue|y ‘Aysdoid 7T
{uoifiiw vy saadns uoipuy : A3uadiny)

{panunLe3) SIUAWBIELS [B[IUBUY BY} O3 SII0N

PI}ILUIIT JUBUIISAAU| PUE YIESAN BUIBANN



04892 L9012 - 0968 LOTZT LEBLY - ST'8TT TTTse [e1aL
04892 £9°017 - 09'68 LO'TET LEGLY - ST°8TL CTTSE BJEM]JOS
vZ0T ‘TE UIei $Z0Z ‘TE YR Jedhayy Jedh €702 ‘T IMdY VZOZ “TE Ye Jeah ayy lead ayy €20¢ ‘T judy
e sy e 5y Juunp sjesodsig ayy 104 s8aeyy 1e5Y je sy Suunp sjesodsig  Suninp sucippy 1e 5y 51855Yy Jo uondiisag
}aoid BN UDIJESIJIOWY PajenWNnIdYy )oupg ssoag
[4-3°T44 ev'Ire - TOTET L9012 TE'899 - v6'88 LE'BLY 18100
€8'5¢T 6PZVE - Z8TET L9017 €899 - 688 LEGLY B4EM]JOS
STOT ‘TE Yrew SZTOT ‘TE Yatew Jeah ayy seak vzoz ‘T dy SZ0Z 'TE YaIeiN Jeakayy 2e2A ay) pZoz ‘1 judy
JB Sy 1B sy Buynp sjesodsig ayyJoy adieyd 1e 5y e sy Juunp sjesodsig  upnp suonppy 1e sy 53355y Jo uonduosag
Y3018 18N UOIIBSILIOWY PIIE|NUUNIIY 3I0]9 55040

syassy ayqifueiu) €1
{uonpus up saadng uoipuy 1 Aauaang)

{panunuo3) syuswale)ls |BIUBULY BYY 03 $BION

PO JUBLLLSIAUL PUB YB3 ELUEANN



8L'SY - - 8LSP
8L'st - - 8L'St ssau8oud ui s108l0uag
sieah g < sieah g- sieal -1 IedhA T >
|e1ol ssauFoud ui s1oafoad Juswdoiansp 2ieMm0S
ut paja|dwod ag ol
: 8|nPayds uone|dwod ayl s Buime||o) ‘ue|d jeuldio 511 03 paleduwiod 1500 53 PRPaIX3 SBU JO INPIBAD S| UOI3|dUI0D 350UM JUaLLdORAIP JBPUN S19SSE 3|qIBuelyl jod (g
£0'99 081 TEET 96°0F ssat8oud ul s33ajoud
SIEAA € < sieah £-7 siead z-T JBBA Y >
[eyor signanaed| (v
40 poliad e so4 JudWidolPAsp sapun $1asse 9|qISuelu ul Junowy
v20e ‘TE Y4B 1B SY
P6'SE - - ¥6°SE |eloL
v6'SE - - t6'SE ssaugoxd ul sioalold
S1EdA E < sieah g-¢ sieah Z-T IEBAT >
|el0L ssauSoud ui syoefoud Juawdojansp aiemyos
ut pais|dwod sq oL
1 3npayas uona|dwon ay3 st upmol|o) ‘ueid jRUFI0 $)1 0) pasedLiod 1507 S]] PRPRROXS SEY 40 BNPJIIA0 S| uoi3Ridwod asoym “uawdo|aazp Japun syasse ajqiBueiul Jod  {g
¥Z'0y 66t EEPT 26°0¢ ssauBoud u) s10aio.ud
siesh g < sieohA £-7 sieoA 2-T eaAT >
12301

J0 pouad e Joj Juawdo@adp Japun 513sse 3|aISuRY| Ul JUNOWY

siepnoizied] (v

SZ0Z ‘TE YR Je sy
juawdojanap 1apun siasse ajqifuelu] T

{uon vy saadna upipuy 1 A2uUa4an2)

(panuriuo)) suswialels [eIFUEUL 3y} 0} SBION

palitti] JuawisoAau] pue yijeah elleAnp



Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miilion)

15 Other non-financial assets
{Unsecured Considered good, tunless stated otherwise)

Deposits

Prepaid expenses
Vendor Advances
Others

Advances to employees

Client receivables
Less: Impairment provision on client receivables {refer note befow )

Note :

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

13.86 10.79
108.93 57.91
36.06 33.93
0.74 6.00
3.00 2.35

- 215.38

- (215.38)
162.59 110.98

Impairment on client receivables includes provision amounting to Rs.215.38 million for the year ended March 31,

2024 towards dispute.
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Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

17 Debt securities
(At amortised cost, within india)

Secured
Redeemable non-convertible debentures (refer note 17a)

Unsecured
Commercial paper {refer note 17a)
Less : Unamortised discount

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

16,661.93 16,680.96
6,500.00 7,010.00
(224.15) (204.10)
6,275.85 6,805.90
22,937.78 23,486.86




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

17a  Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:

Redeemable non-convertible debentures (Secured):

Rate of Interest

As at March 31,

Residual Maturity MLD*

8% to 8.99% 9% t0 9.99% 10% to 10.99% 2025
Upta 1 year 552.78 683.69 - 10,026.51 11,262.98
Over 1 year upto 3 years - 1,726.02 - 3,022.51 4,748.53
Over 3 years - 478,02 - - 478.02
Sub-total 552.78 2,887.73 - 13,049.02 16,489.53
Add : Interest accrued** 221.76
Less : unamortised issuance cost {49.36)
Total 16,661.93
Residual Maturity Rate of Interest MLD* As at March 31,

8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% t0 10.99% 2024
Upto 1 year 419.88 - - 264.07 683.95
Over 1 year upto 3 years 55278 1,563.63 - 11,028.37 13,144.78
Over 3 years - 1,324.10 - 1,454.51 2,778.61
Sub-total 572.66 2,887.73 - 12,746.95 16,607.34
Add : Interest accrued** 154,75
Less : unamortised issuance cost {81.13)
Total 16,680.96

* MLD represents market linked debentures. The interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying benchmark and is fiuctuating in nature.
** Interest accrued but not due is payable on naxt interest payment date for respective 1SiNs.

Note:

Details of Redeemable non-convertible debentures (Secured}:

Details of Market linked debentures:

Market linked debentures are secured by pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all current assets excluding receivables and securities heid on
account and behalf of the clients. Further the Company has pledged equity shares of Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited held by Nuvama Wealth
Management Limited, the Halding Company. The Company is maintaining asset cover of 1x or such higher asset covered required as per terms of offer

document/ Information Memorandum.

Public Issue:

The Company has pledged Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited equity shares held by Nuvama Wealth Management Limited i.e. Holding Company. The
Cempany is maintaining asset cover of 1x or such higher asset covered required as per terms of offer document/ Information Memorandum.

During the year, the Company redeemed 4,301 debentures of Face vaiue Rs. 1,00,000 each pricr to their maturity date. The total arsount paid towards
redemption was Rs. 623.84 million. The redemption was made to take advantage of favourable market conditions and to reduce the company's debt

servicing costs.

Commercial paper

Residual Maturity 8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99% As at

March 31, 2025
Upto 1 year - 6,500.00 - 6,500.00
Sub-total - 6,500.00 - 6,500.00
Less: unamortised Discount {224.15})
Total 6,275.85
Residual Maturity 8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99% As at

March 31, 2024
Upto 1 year 50.00 5,960.00 7,010,00
Sub-total 7,010.00
Less: unamortised Discount {204.10)

Total

£,805.90




“Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflion)
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
18 Borrowings {other than debt securities)
(At amortised cost, within India)

Secured

Term loans frem Financial Institutions other than bank (refer note 18a) 5,109.10 1,102.65
{Secured by charge on margin trading funding loans and corporate guarantee
from Holding Company)

Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks 500.13 2,757.44
{Secured by charge on trade receivables and margin trading funding loans,

fixed deposits and corporate guarantee from Holding Company)

{Interest rate 9.25% for March 31, 2025 (P.Y. : 8.30% to 9.65% p.a.}}

Unsecured

Bank overdraft (Repayable on demand}) - 1,765.45
{Interest rate ranging N.A. for March 31, 2025 (P.Y. : 8.95% to 10.50% p.a.})

Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks - 501.49
{Interest rate ranging N.A. for March 31, 2025 (P.Y. : 8.30% to 9.52% p.a.})

Accrued interest on loan {Related party borrowings, repayable on demand) - 3.60
(refer note 42)
{Interest rate ranging N.A, for Mar 31, 2025 (P.Y. : 10.90% p.a.))

5,609.23 6,130.63




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

18a

Maturity profile and rate of interest on borrowings other than debt securities are set out below:

Term loans from Financial [nstitutions other than bank (Secured) :

Residual Maturity

Rate of Interest

As at March 31,

8% to0 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99% 2025
Upto 1 year 3,100.00 - 3,100.00
Over 1 year upto 3 years - 1,500.00 - 1,500.00
Over 3 years - 500.00 - 500.00
Sub-total - 5,100.00 - 5,100.00
Add : Interest accrued 15.69
Less : unamortised issuance cost (6.59)
Total 5,109.10

Residual Maturity

Rate of Interest

As at March 31,

8% to 8.99% 9% to 9.99% 10% to 10.99% 2024
Upto 1 year - 1,100.00 - 1,100.00
Over 1 year upto 3 years - - - -
Over 3 years - - - -
Sub-total - 1,100.0C - 1,100.00
Add ; interest accrued 2.65
Less : unamortised issuance cost -
Total 1,102.65




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

19 Other financial liabilities

Book overdraft

Accrued salaries and benefits
Deposits from sub-brokers
Retention money payable
Lease Liabilities (refer note 41c)

Unclaimed amount due towards Market Linked Debentures
Other payables

20 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation
{(Net of Tax Deducted as Source and advance tax Rs. 1,253.58 million

(P.Y.: Rs. 532.17 million})

21 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 38}
Compensated leave absences

22 Other non-financial liabilities

Amount received in advance
Statutory dues payable*
Others

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

7.55 18.05
740.72 5561.34
129.16 121.54

2.22 1.42
964.84 777.79

0.42 -

15.66 23.45
1,864.57 1,533.59
33.03 125.77
33.03 125.77
34.36 11.51
34.40 26.28
08.76 37.7%
385.39 427.24
325.79 207.25

0.75 0.53
711.93 635.02

* includes withholding taxes, provident fund, profession tax and other statutory dues payables.




Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : lndian rupees in miltion}

23

Equity share capital
Autharised:

463,300,000 (P.Y. 463,300,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
10,000,000 {P.Y. 10,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up:
430,454,000 (P.Y. 430,454,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up

Movement in share capitol ;

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Terms/ rights ottached to equity shares -

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

4,633.00 4,633.00
100.00 100.00
4,733.00 4,733.00
4,304.54 4,304.54
4,304.54 4,304.54
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amount Amount
4,304.54 4,304.54
4,304:54 4,304-.54

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. in the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by the Hoiding Company :

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited, and its nominees

Detoils of shares held by Promoters :

Nuvarna Wealth Management Limited

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
% %

100% 100%

100% 100%

As at March 31, 2025

No of shares % holding % change during
(including shares the year
held by nominees}
43,04,54,000 100% 0%
43,04,54,000 100% 0%

As at March 31, 2024

% change during

No of shares % holding
(including shares the year
held by nominees}
43,04,54,000 :00% 0%
43,04,54,000 100% 0%
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a)

b)

¢)

d)

Other Equity

Securities premium account
Opening balance
Add : Additions during the year

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening balance
Less : Transfer 1o Retained earning on redemption of non-canvertible

debentures

Deemed capital contribution - ESOP
Opening balance
Less : Transfer to Retained Earnings

Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Add: Profit for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year
Add: Reversal of ESOP cost
Add: Transfer from deemed capital contribution - ESOP
Add: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve

Amount available for appropriation

Appropriations:
Interim dividend paid

FJotal{a+b+c+d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Securities premium

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
599.70 599.70
5585.70 585.70
132.93 207.83
(41.99) {74.90}
90.94 132.93

- 39.42

- (39.42)
3,579.10 1,633.53
1,903.84 1,776.99
{18.55) 1.25
30.50 53.01

- 38.42
41.99 74.90
5,536.88 3,579.10

2,087.70 -

3,449.18 3,579.10
4,139.82 4,311.73

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only
for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Debenture Redemption Reserve

Debenture redemption reserve represents reserves created as per the Companies Act, 2013 w.r.t. outstanding
redeemable debentures out of free reserves. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may
not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount will be transferred

from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings.

c) Deemed capital contribution - ESOP

Deemed capital contribution relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by
£delweiss Financial Services Limited {'EFSL'} being erstwhile Ultimate Parent Company, under its employee

share option plan.

ned earnings

ﬁa:ned earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxes and dividend distribution.
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26

27

28

29

Interest Income

On Financial assets measured at amortised cost
On ESCP funding

On Margin Trading Facility

On fixed deposits with banks

On margin with exchange/ clearing house

On detayed payment

On Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

On Debt securities held for trading

Dividend Income

Dividend on Securities held for trading

Fee and commission income

Income from Broking
Advisory and other fees

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from cantracts with customers:
Geographical markets

Within india

Cutside India

Total revenue from contract with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Service transferred at a point in time

Service transferred over time

Total revenue from contract with customers

Net gain on fair value changes at fair value through profit or loss

Securities held for trading

Profit on trading of securities held for trade {net)
(Loss) /profit on equity derivative instruments (net)

Total Net gain on fair vaiue changes

Fair value changes:
Realised
Unrealised
Total Net gain on fair value changes

Other income

i
'%S)dery balance written back Rs. 25.39 millicn {P.Y. Rs. 0.75 million}.
. ¥ Y

for the year ended  for the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
665.57 1,093.31
1,440.44 897.12
1,101.50 368.93
613.74 802.40
511.42 355.07
39,15 4.27
4,371.82 3,525.10
- 031
- 0.31
4,140.65 3,878.10
7,558.57 6,648.61
11,699.22 10,526.71
11,699.22 10,526.71
11,699.22 10,526.71
11,628.00 10,445.24
71.22 81.47
11,699.22 10,526.71
1,173.19 710.64
(407.26) 4736
765.93 758.00
737.82 759.53
28.11 {1.53)
765.93 758.00
£.40 -
48.19 13.50
53.59 13.50
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30

31

32

Finance costs
{On Financiol liabilities measured at amortised cost}

Interest on term |oan from financial institutions other than bank
Interest on bank overdraft

Interest on loan from group companies

Interest on term loan from banks

Discount on commercial paper

Interest on redeemable non-convertible debentures

Financial and bank charges

Interest Expenses on lease liabilities

Other finance cost and bank charges

Impairment on financial instruments
{On Financigl instruments measured ot amortised cost)

Bad-debts written off/ {written hack} (net}
Provision for expected credit losses - Trade receivables, Loans

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds {refer note 38)
Expense on share based payments {refere note below)
Staff welfare expenses

Note :

for the year ended
March 31, 2025

for the year ended
March 31, 2024

309.41 59.14
28.97 43,26
3.51 49.76
308.74 299.90
630.90 714.61
1,478.05 1,281.29
160.75 81.80
77.77 51.56
6.08 2.00
3,004.18 2,583.32
223.53 6.10
(147.57) 236.96
75.96 243.06
5,425.55 4,234.80
228.66 172.96
112.71 120.77
255.42 188.50
6,022.34 4,717.03

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {"EFSL'} being erstwhile Ultimate Parent Company, has granted an Employee Stock Option
Plans {'ESOP")/Stock appreciation rights {'SAR'} option to acquire equity shares of EFSL to the employees of the Company on
an equity settled basis that would vest in a graded manner to the Company's employees. EFSL has charged the fair value of
such stock options cost and the Company has recognised such cost amounting to Rs. 8.37 million (P.Y. Rs. 18.73 million) under

the employee benefit expenses.

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {'NWML'), the Holding Company has granted Employee Stock Option Plans ('ESOP')/
Stock appreciation rights {"SAR'} option to acquire equity shares of NWML to the employees of the Company on an equity
settled basis that would vest in a graded manner to the Company's employees. NWML has charged the fair value of such stock
options cost and the Company has recognised such cost amounting to Rs. 104.34 million {P.Y. Rs. 102.04 million) under the

employee benefit expenses.
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33

34

Fee and commission expense

Referrals and commissions

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion {refer note 48}
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 34a )
Clearing & custodian charges

Communication (refer note 48)

Computer expenses (refer note 48)

Computer software (refer note 48 )

Corporate social responsibility (refer note 34b }
Dematerialisation charges

Directors' sitting fees

Electricity charges (refer note 48)

Goods & Service tax expenses

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {net)
Membership and subscription

Office expenses {refer note 48 )

Qutside Services Cost {refer note 48)

Postage and courier

Printing and stationery (refer note 48)

Rating support fees

Rent {refer note 48)

Repairs and maintenance (refer note 48}
Securities transaction tax

Seminar and Conference

Stamp duty

Stock exchange expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Other miscellaneous expenses

for the year ended
March 31, 2025

for the year ended
March 31, 2024

2,412.30 2,427.18
2,412.30 2,427.18
329.49 192.31
8.96 7.58
67.34 140.72
82.06 66.03
395.74 384.27
246.92 258.72
39.50 21.72
60.31 54.10
3.08 2.96
23.83 24.37
23.06 19.44
4.82 5.05
130.54 161.60
0.81 2.47
33.18 28.80
118.12 87.32
176.05 148.26
11.43 13.64
14.34 12.22
4.66 4.23
278.47 213.77
17.70 13.24
38.09 41.90
7.66 6.08
9.32 16.17
45.32 44.02
244.55 181.82
5.75 3.61
2,421.10 2,156.82
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34a

34b

Auditors' remuneration

As an Auditor

Statutory audit

Certification work

Towards reimbursement of expenses

Details of Corporate Social responsibility ('CSR') activities

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
b. Amount of expenditure incurred

c. Shortfall at the end of the year

d. Total of Previous Year's shortfall

e. Reason for shortfall

f. Nature of CSR activities

g. Administraive cost towards CSR incurred included in above.

h. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shouid be

shown separately.

for the year ended
March 31, 2025

far the year ended
March 31, 2024

6.60 6.05
1.86 1.57
0.50 0.36
8.96 7.98
36.50 21.72
34,50 2172
NA NA
{i) Women {i) Women
Empowerment Empowerment
(i) Education {ii) Education
{iif) Reducing {iii} Reducing
inequalities and inequalities and
livelihood livelihood
{iv} Well - being and
Skill Development
{v) Enviromental
Sustainability
1.98 -
NA NA
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35 |ncome Tax

a Components of income tax expense

Pparticulars T T March31,2025 March 31, 20241
Currenttax ' 610.90  657.52°
Adjustment in respect of current mcome tax of prior years - 1977 - 2_33 .
Deferred tax relatmg to origination and reversal of temporary differences 20.98 (52 50)=
Total tax charge - 651.65 607.35
Currenttax o 630,67 659.85

Deferred tax - o - 7 2088 (5250)

b Reconciliation of total tax charge

IPartlcuIars o March 31, 2025. ~ March 31,2024
Accounting profit before tax as per Financial statements . ... 255549 238434
‘Tax rate (in percentage) o 25.17% o 25, 17A_
Income tax expense calculated based on this tax rate 643.17 . 600.09
‘Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - 19.77 2.33
Effect of non—deductible expenses: o | : -
) Non—deductible expenses - CSR and other donatton - ; 10.73 ; 578
~ Other non-deductible expenses 110} 000
Adjustment in respect of current income tax pertams to previous years : (23.12)5 (0.85}
Tax charge for the year recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1 651.65 | 607.35:
Effective income tax rate 25.50% 25.47%

ey |
T
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36

37

Particulars

Total n number of equity shares outstanding at the end of _the year

Earnings per share

Computation of earnings per share is set out below:

ch31,2025  March 31,2024

Proflt for th"ev\};aar {as per statement of profit andulrpss) o - 1,963.84 - 1,77'6.91?“:

Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 10 e .
- Number of shares at the begmmng of the year 43,04,54,000 : 43 04 54 000

43,04 qd’obo © 43,04,54,000 :

- Number - of shares issued during the. year

Weighted average number of eguity shares outstandlng_durmg the yeari  23,04,54,000 | 43,04,54,000 ¢
{based on the date of issue of shares) :

413"

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

The primary business of the Company is to provide broking and depository services to its clients in India. The Company is
a distributor for various financial products such as Mutual Funds, Bonds, Debentures, Portfolio Management Services
('PMS') and Alternative Investment Funds {'AIF') etc. The primary segment is identified as Wealth Management.
Accordingly there is no separate reportable segment as per IndAS 108 - operating segment.
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38 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits
A) Defined contribution plan {Provident fund):

Amount of Rs. 180.97 million (P.Y.: Rs. 133.84 million} is recognized as expense and included in
“Empioyee benefit expenses” — refer note 32 to the statement of Profit and Loss.
B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognized in the
statement profit and loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the statement of assets
and liabilities for the gratuity benefit plan.

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service cost
a. Current service cost 34.71 29.71
b. Past service cost - -
c. Net interest on net defined benefit 0.21 1.08
liability
Employer expenses 34.92 30.79

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of DBO at start of the year 275.22 231.39
Service cost
a. Current service cost 34.71 29.71
b. Past service cost - -
Interest cost 18.81 16.99
Benefits paid {22.76) (25.43)
Re-measurements
a. Actuarial loss from changed in 2.21 -
demographic assumptions
b. Actuarial (gain}/ loss from changed in 4.42 1.48
financials assumptions )
¢. Actuarial loss/ {gain) from experience 21.37 13.26
over last past year .
Transfer (out)/in (2.60) 7.82
Present value of DBO at end of the year 331.38 275.22
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38

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at start of the year 263.71 216.35
Contributions by employer 34.26 T 40.47
Benefits paid (22.76) (25.43)
Interest income plan assets 18.60 15.91
Re-measurements
Return on plan assets excluding amount 3.21 16.41
including in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/ (asset)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 297.02 263.71
Actugl return on plan assets 21.80 32.32
Expected employer contributions for the 34.50 11.50

coming year

Net (asset)/ liability recognised in the Balance Sheet:

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Present value of DOB 331.38 275.22
Fair value of plan assets 297.02 263.71
Net Liability/ (Asset) 34.36 11.51
Funded Status [Surplus/ (Deficit}] (34.36) {11.51)

Actuarial assumptions:

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Salary growth rate (% p.a.) 7.% p.a. 7.% p.a.
Discount rate (% p.a.) 6.4% p.a. 6.9% p.a.
Withdrawal rate (% p.a.)
Senior 32% p.a. 35% p.a.
Middle 32% p.a. 35% p.a.
Junior 32% p.a. 35% p.a.
Mortality 1ALM 2012-14 1ALM 2012-14
{Uitimate) {Ultimate)
Interest rate on net DBO/ (asset) (% p.a.) 6.9% p.a. 7.1% p.a.
Weighted average duration of the obligation 2 Years 2 Years
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38

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Balance at start of year loss

(27.47)

(29.14)

Re-measurements on DBO -

a. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in
demographic assumptions

(2.21)

b. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from changes in
financial assumptions

(4.42)

{1.48)

¢. Actuarial {loss)/gain from experience
over last past year

(21.37)

{13.26)

Re-measurements on plan assets

Return on plan assets excluding amount
including in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability / (asset)

3.21

16.41

Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling

Changes in the effect of limiting a net
defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
excluding amount included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability/ {asset)

Balance at end of year loss

(52.26)

(27.47)

Sensitivity Analysis

DOB increases / {decreases ) by

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

year)*

1 % increase in salary growth rate 8.71 6.54
1 % Decrease in salary growth rate (8.42) (6.43)
1 % Increase in discount rate (8.39) (6.38)
1 % Decrease in discount rate 8.84 6.61
1 % Increase in withdrawal rate (1.03) {0.55)
1% Decrease in withdrawal rate 1.06 0.57
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 3 Negligible change
year}*

Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 3 9 1
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38 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee benefits {Continued)

Movement in Net (Liability}/ Asset

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net Liability at the start of the year (11.51) (15.04)
Net transfer out/ (in) 2.60 (7.82)
Movement during the year
Current service cost {34.71) {29.71)
Past service cost - -
Net interest on net DBO (0.21) (1.08)
Re-measurements (24.79) : 1.67
Contributions/ benefits 34.26 40.47
Net Liability at the end of the year (34.36) {11.5%)
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
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40 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

" tash flows c-lnuring

Others during the

Particulars April 1, 2024 New leases March 31, 2025
. ) e the year year* e

Debt securities** 23,093.87 (29081} - (13.15) 22,789.91
Borrowings other than debt securities ~ 6,130.63 (514.36) - {7.04} 5,609.23
Lga;g liability (308.32) 40881 8656 96484
Total liabilities from financing activities 30,002.29 [1,113.49] 408.81 66.37 29,363.98
P rt. I ..... T o - T . 3 h -
articulars Aprit 1, 2023 Cash flows during New leases Others during the March 31, 2024

. . L the year year* .
P?b{??‘f{ritiesﬂ - 32.80 23{093.87
Borrowings other than debt securities - 3.55 6,130.63
Lease liability ag534 (246.87) 502.79 5653 777.79
Total liabilities from financing activities - 23,618.16 5,788.46 502.79 92.88 30,002.29

* includes the effect of interest accrued but not paid en borrowings.
** includes impact of embedded derivatives assets Rs. 224.39 million (P.Y. Rs. 463.02 million) and embedded derivatives fiabilities Rs. 76.53 million (P.Y. Rs. 70.02

miflion) (refer note 4)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency . Indian rupees in milfion)
41 Contingent fiabilities, commitments and lease arrangements

a. Legal claims

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment. In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces clzims and assertions
by varicus parties, The Company assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the
assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable
and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in the financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered
possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless
the loss hecomes probable. The aggregate value of claim against the Company is Rs. 14.13 million {P.Y. Rs. 29.88 million).

k. Contingent liahilities

Parti ‘March31,2025  March 31,2024
{a) gainst the Cor owledged as deb . 14.13 29.88
(b) Taxation matters in respect of ESOP and others 90.49 -

Note: During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Holding Company has received an order for the assessment year 2018-2019 from the
Income tax department disallowing ESOP perquisite value. Considering the same, the Company has disclosed Rs. 23.01 million as a
contingent liability for the assessment year 2017-18 being the tax effect on such ESOP perquisite value deduction claimed in the return of
Income and for which the provision for taxation for assessment year 2017-18 has been adjusted in the books. In respect of assessment
years other than above, on a conservative basis, the Company has not claimed any deduction while making tax provision in the books of
account and hence there is no contingent liability for such assessment years.

c. Leases

The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises.

i) Movement of Right of Use assets - leasehold premises

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening Balance 701,56 391.82
Addition/ {dispo;s-al) ﬁuriﬁg theyear 42043 50397
Less: Amortisation on Right of Use - leasehold premises ”(250.761 (194.23)
Closing Balance 871.23 701.56

i) Movement of Lease liabilities

Particulars

- March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

:99‘?,,’]?95,??!?"!‘39 ) 777.79 465.34
Addition/ (disposal) during the year B 408.81 502.79
Add: Accretion of interest 8656 56,53
Less: Payment durihg the year - m(§08.32)‘ (246.87}
Closing Balance 964.84 777.79
iii) Short term lease commitments

Short term lease payments for the year as follows:

Particulars ‘ March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 7.48 7.93
Total 7.48 7.93

iv) Other disclosures

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Particulars Years/ Amount Years / Amount
The leases have an aVerage life of between (in yeérs) BT - 656
The total lease p'ay"rhrént for the year (amouht) 490.07 404.32
JEEserent expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss for short term lease 181.74 157.45

gy

)
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‘Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued }
{Currency . Indian rupees in milflion)
41 Contingent liabilities, commitments and lease arrangements {Continued)
d. Capital and other commitments

i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets amounts to Rs. 53.53
million {net of advances) {P.Y. Rs. 49.70 million).

ii) The Company has sponsor capital commitments {net of investments} Rs. 102.50 mitlion (P.Y. Nil)

iiij The Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating to Rs. 13,000.00 million (P.Y. Rs. 2,500.00 million) te The Bombay Stock
Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirement.

iv} The Company has pledged fixed deposits with bank aggregating to Rs. 6,500.10 million (P.Y. Rs. 1,250.00 million) for obtaining the above
bank guarantees.




Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2025

42 Related Party Disclosure

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

List of related parties
a. Name of related party by whom control is exercised

PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Ltd - Ultimate Holding Company
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - Holding Company

b. Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place

Nuvama Asset Management Limited
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited
MNuvama Clearing Services Limited
Pickright Technologies Private Limited

¢. Associate of Holding Company with whom transactions have taken place

Nuvama Custodial Services Limited

d. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Alok Saigal - Executive Director (w.e.f. May 6, 2024}

Mr. Prashant Mody - Executive Director (Resigned on May 6,2024}
Mr. Ashish Kehair - Non Executive Director

Ms. Neetu Ranka - Non Executive Director

Mr. Birendra Kumar - Independent Director

Mr. Kamlesh Vikamsey - Independent Director

Mr. Sameer Kaji - Independent Birector (w.e.f. December 10, 2024}
s, Sheetal Gandhi - Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Sneha Patwardhan - Company Secretary (w.e.f. January 30, 2025)
Mr. Rohan Jadhav - Company Secretary {Resigned on December 31, 2024)

e. Key Management Personel of the Holding Company with whom transactions have taken place
Mr. Shiv Sehgal - Executive Director

Mr. Nikhil Srivastava - Non Executive Director

Mr. Bharat Kalsi - Chief Financial Officer

f. Relatives of Key Management Personel with whom transactions have taken place
Mrs. Madhubatla lain (Mother of Mr. Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Virendra Kumar Jain {Father of Mr. Rahul lain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Pratiksha Jain {Spouse of Mr. Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
Mrs. Priva Nayak Kehair (Spouse of Mr. Ashish Kehair - Non Executive Director)
Ms. Rupal Jain (Sister of Mr. Rahul Jain - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sharmeela Mehdi Kazerouni {Sister of Mr. Sameer Kaji - Independent Director)
-Mr. Deepak Pareek (spouse of Ms. Neetu Ranka - Non-executive Director)
':3§$§fgstha Consulting LLP {LLP Controlled by Mr. Ashish Kehair-Non Executive Director)
) \“'ﬂ’i}‘d' Jain HUF {HUF of Mr. Rahul Jain - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer)
l':A)':"" |

£
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
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42

Related Party Disclosure (Continued):

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting 5tandard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ;

Refated party name Nature of Transaction March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited Shared premises cost paid 145,28 67.54
Enterprise/ Corporate cost paid 94.94 66.36
Employee Stock Option Cost paid 104.34 102.04
Cost reimbursement paid 13.60 50.40
Technology Shared Service Cost paid 263.34 254.92
Cost reimbursement recovered 3.75 5.01
Fees income received 3.68 2.77
Commission Paid - 0.30
Purchase of Property Plant and - 0.08
Equipment
Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 194 -
Purchase of AIF investments 142.38 -
Dividend Paid 2,087.70 -
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited Loans taken 14,177.60 59,872.15
Loan repaid 14,177.60 59,872.15
Maximum outstanding during the year 1,200.00 2,469.60
Interest paid on loan 3.51 49.76
Margin Received 1,286.77 317.55
Margin refunded 1,336.88 235.88
Brokerage income received 1.05 0.23
Fees income received 3.94 34.43
Interest income on debt instrument 7.29 4,28
Purchase of securities 8,397.38 4,509.18
Sale of securities 10,583.05 4,557.67
Cost reimbursement paid 0.21 -
Cost reimbursement recovered 38.30 30.53
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited Margin placed with 5,13,153.26 5,42,118.46
Margin withdrawn 5,34,004.07 5,34,449.73
Interest received on margin 613.74 802.21
Shared premises cost paid 23.93 38.44
Clearing charges paid 67.46 140.67
Cost reimbursement paid 0.02 3.59
Cast reimbursement recovered 5.20 3.39
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited Fees income received 450.27 34.42
Cost reimbursement recovered 1.57 0.56
Nuvama Asset Management Limited Fees income received 372,91 98,65
Commission and Referral fees paid 1.80 80.51
Management fees paid 55,79 23.74
Cost reimbursement paid 1.75 -
Cost reimbursement recovered 0.20 0.02
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
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42

Related Party Disclosure {Continued):

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - “Related Party Disclosure”, as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

Related party name

Nature of Transaction

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

H

Pickright Technologies Private Limited Subscription / ficense fees paid - 1.21
Software Development and maintenance 15.68 6.07
cost paid
Fees income received D.05 -

Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company Brokerage income received 0.33 0.08
Charges recovered* 0.00 0.05
Margin Received 50.88 -
Margin refunded 515.74 -

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Brokerage income received 0.47 0.52
Charges recovered 0.37 0.26
Margin Received 217.56 -
Margin refunded 116,17 -
Purchase of securities 0.29 -

Key Managerial Personnel Brokerage income received 0.96 0.62
Charges recovered 0.02 0.50
Remuneration paid 187.83 122.00
Margin Received 204.60 -
Margin refunded 1,227.89 -

independent Directors Director's Sitting Fees paid 3.08 2.96

Balances with related parties

Nuvama Weaith Management Limited Trade payables 117.27 69.24
Other payables 15.05 22.45
Trade receivables 4.50 20.09

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited Interest accrued and due on loan taken - 3.60
Debt securities held 93.43 7273
Trade payables 36,32 304.70
Qther payables 0.52 G.02
Trade receivables 3.77 24.44
Securities held for trading 28.85 38.04
Accrued Interest on Securities held for 0.45 G.57
trading

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited Trade payabies* 0.00 4.33
Trade receivables 0.33 0.56
Margin placed 1,127.63 21,578.44
Accried Interest on Margin placed 10.62 263.36

Nuvama Custodial Services Limited Trade payables - 0.01
Trade receivables 7.87 5.42

fNuvama Asset Management Limited Trade payables 4.28 5.12
Other payables 0.17 0.43
Trade receivables 55.11 44.54
Trade payables 1.47 7.86

iickright Technologies Private Limited

g N
N/‘:
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Related Party Disclosure {Continued):

Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

Related party name Nature of Transaction March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Key Managerial Personnel of Holding Company Trade payables 0.25 -
Key Manageriai Personnel Trade payables 118.17 14.54

Trade receivables 0.18 -
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel Trade payzables 6.94 2.47
Trade receivables 24,87 1.70

Off Balance sheet balances

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited Corporate Guarantee availed 25,523.10 14,5946.50
{Off Balance sheet)

*0.00 indicates amount less than 0.01 million
Notes :-

1. The intra group Company foans are generally in the nature of revolving demand loans. Loan availed from parties are disclosed based on actual
amount availed/repaid during the reporting period.

2. Information relating to remuneration paid {short term} to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity and
ieave encashment which are provided for group of employees en an overall basis and perquisites on exercise of ESOPs. These are included on cash
basis. The variabie compensation included herein is on cash hasis.

3. Cerporate guarantee amount disclesed basis utilisation as at year end.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties:

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in ardinary course of the business and on arm’s fength basis. Outstanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured and gross amounts are settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received against these related party
receivables or payables as at balance sheet date.
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43 Capital management

The primary cbjective of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company
maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares or raise/ repay debt. No changes have been
made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under
constant review by the Board.

In addition to above, the Company is required to maintain minimum net worth as prescribed by
regulatory authorities. The management ensures that this is complied.

a4 Risk Management
Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company provides broking
services, extends a loan, buys or sells securities in market, or offers other products or services,
the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall objective is to manage its
businesses, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its
customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Company believes that effective risk management requires:
1. Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all
individuals within the Company;
2. Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the
lines of business and Corporate; and

3. Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Company strives for continuat improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing
employee training and development and other measures.

Risk management structure

The Company has a well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification,
assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated with the various business activities.
The risk function is monitored by central risk group that is responsible for managing the risk arising
out of various business activities.

o7 ‘,\.ﬁ":.\;//
Siita=o
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Risk Management (Continued)

Risk management structure {Continued}

The Company’s risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are able to
withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply declining prices. The Company centralises
risk monitoring systems to monitor client's credit exposure which s in addition to the monitoring
undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Company’s risk management framework. The board has established a Risk Management
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation
of responsihilities. Credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit
for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as
well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and
verifications. Qur key business processes are regularly monitored by the head of our business or
operations. Our approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures
are designed to minimise delinguencies and maximise recoveries.

At all levels of the Company's operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and
distributed in order to ensure that all business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and

up-to—date information.

it is the Company's policy that regular briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other
relevant members of the Company in the utilisation of limits, proprietary investments and
liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

it is the Company's policy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational
risk culture. Employees are expected to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the
Company is exposed to. The Company's continuous training and development emphasises that
employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles
and responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite
timits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees’
annual ratings and remuneration reviews.
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Risk Management {Continued)

Risk mitigation and risk culture {Continued)

Types of Risks :
Risks Arising from Measurement, monitoring and
management of risk
Credit risk: Arises principally from | Measured as the amount that could be

Credit risk is the risk of
financial loss if a customer
or counterparty fails to
meet an obligation under
a contract.

financing, dealing in
Corporate Bonds,
investments in Mutual
Fund, Equity and other
such products.

lost if a customer or counterparty fails
to make repayments;

Monitored using various internal risk
management measures and within
limits approved by individuals within a
framework of delegated authorities;
and

Managed through a robust risk control
framework, which outlines clear and
consistent policies, principles and
guidance for risk managers.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk
that we do not have
sufficient financial
resources to meet our
obligations as they fall
due orthat we can only do
50 at an excessive cost.

Liquidity risk arises from
mismatches in the
timing of cash flows.

Measured using a range of metrics,
including Asset Liability mismatch,
Debt Equity Ratio

Regular monitoring of funding levels to
ensure to meet the requirement for
Business and maturity of our liabilities.
Maintain diverse sources of funding
and liguid assets to facilitate flexibility
in meeting liquidity requirements of
the Company.

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that
movements in  market
factors, such as Interest
rates, equity prices and
index prices etc will
reduce our income or the
value of our portfolios.

Exposure to market risk
is separated into two
portfolios: trading and
non-trading.

Measured using sensitivities, detailed
picture of potential gains and losses for
a range of market movements and
scenarios.

Monitored using measures, including
the sensitivity of net interest income.
Managed using risk limits approved by
the risk management committee.
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Risk Management {Continued)

Risk mitigation and risk culture {Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's
Trade receivables and Loans (which includes comprises of Margin Trading Facility {‘MTF') and
Employee Stock Option Plan {'ESOP’) Loans). The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. in case the loans are to be restructured, similar
credit assessment process is followed by the Company.

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and available collateral.

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing
to accept for individual counterparties/Groups and by monitoring exposures in relation to such
limits.

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with
the Company and market intelligence. Qutstanding customer receivables are regulariy monitored.
The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result
of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Trade receivables including Margin Trading Facility ("MTF’)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables including Margin Trading Facility ("MTF'}). The application of simplified approach does
not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition,

The ageing wise trade receivable used to assess credit risk is as follows:

Bucketing March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{Ageing) Carrying value Carrying value
0 —30 Days 4,514.98 4,261.37
31 - 60 Days 147.90 104.66
61 — 90 Days 226.08 23.75
More than 90 Days 188.22 170.80
Less: Impairment allowance (230.95) (163.67)
Totai 4,846.23 4,396.91
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44 Risk Management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Employee Stock Option Plan {‘ESOP’} Loans

Impairment assessment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. The
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and {oss given
default. The Company has devised an internal model to evaluate the probability of default and
loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the loans are classified
into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing

High grade 0 dpd and 1 to 30 dpd Stage |
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd Stage li
Non-performing

Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage |l

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss {ECL) computation is not driven by
any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following:

1) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

2) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;
3) Time value of money

While the time value of money element is currently being factored into ECL measurement while
discounting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate {EIR), the objective of developing a macro
economic mode!} using exogenous macro economic variables (MEVs) is to address the first two
requirements. This has heen achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component
in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in Credit Risk (SICR)
The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired)

for ECL calculations, in ali cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due. Classification of
assets from stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are
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Risk Management (Continued)
Employee Stock Option Plan {'ESOP’) Loans {Continued)

Significant increase in Credit Risk {SICR) {Continued)

more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit
risk has been abserved. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such events
occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer
as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is
appropriate.

Probability of Default (PD)

Probability of default (PD} is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon.
Since the Company has nil historical default in it's portfolio, PD calculation is a challenge basis
default history of the Company. Hence stage 1 PD has been considered from from a Discussion
Paper on “Introduction of Dynamic Loan loss Provisioning Framework for Banks in India” by RBI in
March 2012. )

Loss Given Default (LGD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account,
among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be
realised and the time value of money. Since the Company is into the business of lending against
securities, haircut of 25% is applied on the value of the collateral, based on basel haircut values
for corporate securities. The exposure amount that is over and above the collateral {with haircut)
is considered as the “Loss Exposure”,

LGD%=Loss exposure/EAD

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the Company at the time of default is defined as
Exposure at Default {EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the
Company, there might be variable exposure that may change the EAD. For the current £CL
computation exercise, the sum of all outstanding amounts has been taken as the total exposure.

Following tabie provides information about exposure to credit risk and ECL on Loans:

Bucketing March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Stage) Carrying value ECL Carrying value ECL
Stage 1 14,297.04 2.28 18,085.44 3.73
Stage 2 - - - -
Stage 3 0.98 0.98 0.03 0.03
Total 14,298.02 3.26 18,085.47 3.76
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a4 Risk Management (Continued]

44aii) Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The tahle below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial liabilities as at year end:

As at March 31, 2025 Lésé thén 3 3 monthsto 6 Gmonthsto 12 1 year to 3 years More than 3 Total
. . .months months months . years

Derivative financial instruments 153.59 - 76.52 - - 230.11
Trade payables 18,301.50 - - _ . 18,301.50
Debt securities 7 2,688.73 677671 818161  4,860.08 42865 22,937.78
Borrowings (other than debt securities) T 301537 595.46 L 149825 499.15 5,609.23
Other financial liabilities - 963.95 Coe001 10393 36277 EETEYT " 186457
Total undiscounted financial Habilities 25,123.14 7,435.18 8,362.06 6,721.10 1,301.71 48,943.19

Asat . 2024 Less than 3 Imonthsto 6 Gmonthsto12 1 year to 3 years More than 3 Total
months  months  months . years
Derlvatwe financial |nstrument5 221.75 - 2390 69,01 - 314.66
Trade pavabies T 17,817, T o . ' - C 1791762
Debt securities " 310228 2,980.09 "i'"ém 67 ' 13,180.42 2,7000 73,486.86
‘Borrowings {other than debt securities) 323063 2 900.00 ST T - 5,130.63
lOthEl’ ﬁnannal [|ab|E|t| ES N T . 867§7 ) 47 80 oo 9155 T i%.&i T 28&86 ) 1,5373.5§7
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 25,280.25 5,937.29 1,620.12 13,545.84 2,999.86 49,383.36
44alii) Analysis of financial assets by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s financial assets as at year ended:
As at March 33, 2025 “lessthan?  3monthsto6  Emonthsto 12 lyearto3years  More than 3 " Total
. ._.months Jmonths o wmonths . yeas
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 19,211.52 2, 370 44 _ 6,553.58 5.96 . 28 141.50
‘Derivative financial instruments - ~ 1518 20834 . ’ 862.18
.SECUFITIES held fVOrrt B . T - - - ’ - T 5,05397
Trade recewables | ' ' o 3‘,92{73.576& 530, : - B
Loans 1,365.59 ’ . 3 612 13 8 377 04 . - —_— .14,294.7%“
Investments ST ’ - ) 47 70 7455 T 041 14248
‘Other financial assets 208957 1054 B89 16975 3280 8155
Total o - 34,189.10 6,282.28 | 15,532.99 565.37 52,91 56,622,65
Bs at March 31, 2024 ) Lessthan3  3monthsto6  6monthsto12 lyearto3years  More than 3 Total
months months months . - years I
2,877.00 2,739.02 2,990.69 042 - 8,607.13
tive financial instruments o 7saas L 859 299.81 " 16240 1,255.24
Securities held for trading - 1,363é_2 T ) o LT . 1,36332
Trade receivables T 2,685.69 | 50037 79022 42063 - 4,396.91
‘Loans ' 3,763.33 283353 1148485 - S 18,081.71
Ivestments ] e . B meren ) R
Other financial assets ) 2336661 I 13868 3150 2353679

Total - - 34,290.89 6,072.92 15,274.35 859.54 193,90 57,241.60
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44 Risk Management {Continued)

44b Coltateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset. That also shows the total fair value of collateral, any surplus
collateral ({the extent to which the fair value of collateral held is greater than the exposure to which it relates), and the net exposure to credit

risk:

As at March 31, 2025

Financial assets
Loans {Gross)
Trade receivables {Gross) - Secured

Trade receivables (GTOSS)V- Unsggurrgq:" 7

“Fotal

AsatMarch 31,2024

Financial assets

toans (Gross)
Trade receivables (Gross} - Secured
Trade
Total

- 'ﬁ;i‘akimu;h'exposﬁre Principal tﬁse of collateral

to credit risk

{carrying amount
. before ECL).

14,298.02 Securities

.. 1,387.42 securities
3,689.76 |

19,375.20

Maximum exposure Principa'l fy;pe of collateral

to credit risk

(carrying amount

before ECL);

~ 18,085.46 Securi

_ L25363 Securities

3,306.95 .

2264608

Collateral information Is not applicable to financial assets other than those mentioned above.
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44  Risk Management {Continued)

44¢  Total market risk exposure

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Particulars ' Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk Carryinﬁ amount  Traded risk ‘Non-traded risk
Financial assets o T N . o e e Py
Cash and cash eguivalent and other bank balances 2834150 - 28,141.50 . 8607.13 . - _8607.13
Derivative financiaf instruments 862.18 852.18 - 1,25 . 1,255.24 -
Securities held for trading 6,053.97 5,053.97 - 1,363.82 1,363.82 -
Loans T w246 T 14,294.76 1808171 - 18,081.71
Trade receivables 4,845.23 - 484623 439691 - 4,396.91
Investments 142.06 | 14246 - T - o
Other Financial assets 228155 . 2,28155 2353679 T 723,536.79
Total ) 56,622.65 7,058.61 49,564.04 57,241.60 2,619.06 54,622.54
Financtal liabitities T Tmmmmo e e

Derivative financial instruments 23011 - 31466 '314.66 :
Borrowings [other than Debt Securities) “se09.23 - 5,506.23 5,130.63 T T 63063
‘Debt securities ~ T 22,937.78 o 22,937.78 " 73,486.86 - 23,486.86
Trade payabies 1830150 T 18,301.50 11791762 - 17,917.62
Other liabilities 1,864.57 o 1,864.57 153359 - 1,533.59
Total 48,943.19 230.11 48,713.08 - 49,383.36 314.66 - 48,068.70
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Nates to the financial statements {Continued)
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44  Risk Management (Continued)

44d  Market Risk (Price Risk)

The Company has exposure in gucted equity shares, mutual funds, debt instruments and derivative instruments. Accordingly there is
effect on the Company's profitability due to variation in market price as mentioned below.

44d(i} Index Price Risk
Index price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of
equity and index indices.

As at March 31, 2025 ‘ Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points hefore tax basis points kefore tax
Embedded derivative 25 0.37 25 {0.37}
Exchange traded derivatives 25 1.21 25 {1.21)
As at March 31, 2024 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
hasis points before tax basis points befare tax
Embedded derivative 25 0.98 25 {(0.98)
£xchange traded derivatives 25 1.37 25 (1.37}

444 (ii} Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of
individual investment in equity share and mutual fund prices.

As at March 31, 2025 Increase in Effect on Profit Decreasein Effect on Profit
basis points hefore tax basis points before tax
Equity shares, mutual funds and Alternate Investment 25 11.74 25 (11.74)
Funds
As at March 31, 2024 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points hefore tax hasis points hefore tax
Equity shares and mutual funds 25 2.54 25 (2.54)

44d {iii} Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of
financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates.

As at March 31, 2025 Increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points before tax basis points before tax
Debt instruments 25 3.40 25 (3.40)
As at March 31, 2024 increase in Effect on Profit Decrease in Effect on Profit
basis points before tax basis points before tax

Debt instruments 25 0.87 25 {0.87)
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45 Financial assets available to suppert future funding

a. Following table sets out avaitability of assets to support funding:

March 31, 2025 .. . . Pledge ascoliateral others (refer note 1) Available as collateral others frefernote2)  Total carrying amount
Cash and cash equivalents o } o T - 58741 . 08741
Bank balances other than cash and ¢ash equivalents 27,2888 - o 385.21 &l
Derivative financial instruments , o S ge218 - : .. ..Be2le
Securities held for trading 1,171.15 - 4,882.82 - 6,053.57
Trade receivables {refer note 3} 4,500.00 - 346.23 N 4,846,23
Loans ’ 13,617.70 - E%M?.OS‘ e 14, 75
Investments - - 142.46 - 14246
Other finandial assets ' ' - 207027 180.19 109 0 0 2281355
Total assets T 46,457.73 2,932.45 6,228.76 1,003.71 56,622.65
March31,202¢4 PI:szemas- col.l-a_t-é.;aimo;hex}_;:{_;'_gfer aote 1) Available as collateral othe_;s {J:mgf_egn&te 2) ) B 'i‘otal cérnjing amount
Cash and cash equivalents i e e e e e et e : IR, - L e 307,34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 7,555.77 - - 144.02 7,699,79
Derivative financial instruments 7 o - ) 1,255.24”‘ -7 S T )
Securities held for trading £33.71 - 530.11 -

Trade receivables (refer note 3) ' ) © T 3,000.00 . T 139691 T 4,396.91
loans ) ‘ 8,316.65 - 7 7 T egesps o 081.71
Ilﬁw\restments & - ' . . o S -

‘Other financial assets S 229445 49416 7818

Total assets R 19,706.13 24,219.69 - 12,186.24 1,129.54 57,241.60

Note
1 Represents assets which are not pledged and the Company believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason.
2 Represents assets which are not restricted for use as collateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available to secure funding in the normal course of
business.
3 Trade receivables pladged as ccllateraf are against undrawn bank facilities.

b. Yndrawn borrowing commitments
The Company has undrawn borrowing commitmenss from banks amounting to Rs. 4,488.10 million as on March 31, 2025 (P.Y. : &s. 1,985.64 million).
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46 Fair Value measurement
a. Valeation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the

measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using 2 valuation technique, In
order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1~ valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that Company can access at
the measurement date.

tevel 2 —valuation technique using chsarvable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, zre derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire peried of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 - valuation technique with significant uncbservable inputs: Those that include one or mare unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

b. Valuation governance framework

The Company’s fair value methodclogy and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure 2ppropriate safeguards are in
place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methadologies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the Company
including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair vaiues are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination ar validation is used.

For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considerad to be more relevant and relizble.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is also responsikie for establishing
procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

¢ The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2025 Level 1 level 2 Level 2 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments {refer note 4a )

Exchange traded derivatives 683.60 - - 683.60
Embadded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 224,39 224.39
Total derivative financial instruments - A 683.60 - 224.39 907.99

Financial Assets held for trading {refer note 5)

Equity Shares 121.18 0.0t - 131.19
Mutual fund 4,477.26 - - 4,4771.26
Alternate lnvestment Funds B 87.07 - 87.07
Debt instruments 700.18 £49.28 - 1,358.46
Total Financial assets held for trading « B 5,317.62 736.36 - $,053.98
Total Financial assets measured at fair value [A+B} 6,001.22 736.36 224,39 6,961.97

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments {refer note 4a '}

Exchange traded derivatives 219.92 - - 219.92

Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 76,53 76.53

Tetal derivative financial Instruments 219.92 - 76,53 296.45
Total Financial liabilities measured at fair value 219.92 - 76.53 296.45
As at March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange traded derivatives 847.44 .77 - 855.21
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures - - 463.02 463.02
Total derivative financial instruments - A 847.44 7.77 463.02 1,318.23

Financial Assets held for trading [refer note 5)

Equity Shares 35143 0.01 - 351.44
Mutua! fund 6E4.86 - - 964.86
Alternate Investrment Funds - - - .
Debt instruments 219,29 128.23 - 347.52
Total Financial assets held for trading - 8 1,238.58 128.24 - 1,363.82
Total Financial assets measured at fair value {A+B} 2,083.02 136.01 463.02 2,682.05

o
ol
/E&?lva‘tlve-ﬂnanclal instruments {refer note 4o )

0'" 7 Exchange:t\hde’d derivatives 230.04 22.88 -
/ﬂ’/ Embedded l{eﬁva;wes in market-linked debentures - - 70.02
i (J‘J . thal f-':.nanci'al’iiah 'i!éJs measured at fair value 230.04 22.88 70.02

+ \
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46 Fair Value measurement {Continued)

d.

Valuation technigques {Continued }

Debt securities:

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed rate securities. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing
in the market as at the reporting date. The Company has used quoted price of stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively,

Governmanet securities:

Government securities are financial instruments issued by sovereign governements and include ieng term honds and short-term Tresury bills with fixed or floating rate
interest payments. These instruments are generally highly liquid and traded in active markets resufting in a Level! 1 classiication.

Equity Shares:

The majority of equity shares are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1.
Equity shares in non listed entities are initially recognized at transaction price and remeasured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at
instrument levet. Such unlisted equity shares are classified at level 2.

Units of Mutual funds and Alternate Investment Funds {"AtF') :

Units of mutual funds are measured based an their published net assets value {NAV), taking into account redemption and/ or other restrictions. Such instruments are also
classified as Level 1.
Units held in AIF funds are measured based on their published net asset value [NAV], taking into account redemtption and/ or other restrictions. Such instruments are
classified as Lavet 2,

Embedded derivative:

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the
combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

The Company uses valuation models which calculate the present value of expected future cash flows, based upon 'no arbitrage’ principles. inputs to valuation models are
determined from observable market (indices) data wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers. Company classify these embedded
derivative as level 3 instruments

Exchange traded derivatives:
Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock options, index/stock futures, The Company uses exchange traded prices to value these derivative and classify these

instrument as level 1.
There have been na transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Embedded derivatives

Assets measured at fair value on a recurting basis Assets Liabilities Net Balance

As at April 1, 2024 463.02 70.02 393.00
lssuances 7.44 - 7.44
Change in Value of Embedded derivatives [235.400 7.51 {242.91)
Settiements (10.67) {1.01) {9.66})
As at March 31, 2025 224.39 76.52 147.87

Embedded derivatives

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring hasis Assets Liahilities Net Balance

As at April 1, 2023 1,708.08 - 1,708.08
Issuances 169.40 45.03 124.37
Change in Value of Embedded derivatives {1,414.46}) 2499 (1,439.45)

As at March 31, 2024 463,02 70,02 393.00
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)
a7 Foreigh currency transactions

a. The Company has incurred following expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis).

Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024
Staff welfare expenses and 11.21 11.58
Other expenses

b. The Company has earned following income in foreign currency (on accrual basis).

Particulars For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2025 31,2024
Fees and commission income 13.10 11.30

48 Cost sharing

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited, being the Holding Company incurs expenditure like senior
management cost, technelogy and administrative cost etc. which is for the common benefit of
itself and its subsidiaries and associates. These costs expended are reimbursed by the Company
on the basis of number of employees, actual identifications, etc. On the same lines, branch
running costs expended (if any) by the Holding Company for the benefit of its subsidiaries and
associates are recovered by the Holding Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the
management, the expenditure heads in notes 32 and 34 include reimbursements paid and are net
of reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate.
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49

50

Segment wise disclosure as required as per Regulation 31 (2] of Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India {Registration of Corporate Agents} Regulations, 2015

Segment wise disclosure for Revenues received for Insurance intermediation and other income
from Insurers as per Regulation 31 (2) of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Edelweiss Life Insurance Company Limited

Commission earned on selling life insurance policies 509.14 332.94
Recovery of Marketing activities 139.07 108.11

Zuno General Insurance Limited

Commission earned on selling general insurance policies 2.82 481

HDFC Life Insurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 159.48 98.80

Recovery of Marketing activities - 50.00

Star Health and Allied inhsurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 3.72 2.22

Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 437.36 127.02

Recovery of Marketing activities - 95.79

Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 16,51 30.92

Bharti Axa Life Insurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 4.76 -

Aditya Birla Health Insurance Company Limited

Commission income earned 0.69 -

Additional regulatory information required under (WB) {xiv} of Division Uil of Schedule Il
amendment, disclosure of ratios, is not applicable to the Company as it is in broking business and
not an Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC’} registered under section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934.
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50a  Pursuant to SEBI's Operational circular SEBI/ HO/ DDHS/ P/CIR/ 2021 /613 dated August 10, 2021

to the extent applicable to Commercial Papers, information as required under Regulation 52(4) of
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended

March 31, 2025 is as mentioned below :-

Sr. . Represent in Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. terms of March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. | Debt-equity Ratio (Refer note 1) Times 3.38 3.44
2. | Net worth (Refer note 2) Rs. in million 8,444.36 8,616.27
3. | Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Refer note 3) Times 0.17 0.15
4. | Interest Service Coverage Ratio (Refer note 4) Times 1.87 1.94
5. | Outstanding redeemable preference shares Rs. in million NA NA
{no.of shares)
6. { Outstanding redeemable preference shares Rs. in million NA NA
{including dividend accrued but not due)
7. | Capital redemption reserve Rs. in million NA NA
8. | Debenture redemption reserve Rs. in million 90.94 132.93
9. | Net profit after tax Rs. in million 1,903.24 1,776.99
10. | Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (Face Value of Rs. 10/-
each) :
- Basic per share Rs. 4.42 413
- Diluted per share Rs. 4.42 4,13
11. | Total debt to Total assets (%) (Refer Note 5) % 49,05% 50.37%
12. | Net profit margin (%) {Refer Note 6) % 11.27% 11.99%
Notes:
1. Debt-equity Ratio = Total debt/ Net worth
Total Debt = Debt securities + Borrowings other than debt securities
2. Net worth = Equity share capital + Other Equity
3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = {Profit before tax and Finance cost excluding IND AS 116
impact) / (Finance cost excluding INDAS 116 impact + Total Debt)
4. Interest Service Coverage Ratio (ISCR) = (Profit before tax and Finance cost excluding IND AS 116
impact) / (Finance cost excluding IND AS 116 impact)
5. Total Debt to Total Assets = Total Debt / Total Assets
6. Net profit margin = Net Profit after tax for the year/ Total Revenue

7. Current ratio, Long term debt to working capital, Bad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current
liability ratio, Debtors turnover, Inventory turnover and Operating margin {%) are not applicable
owing to the business model of the Company.
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51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

There have been no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions other than bank on the basis of
security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the
Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts,

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any other lender.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of
Companies beyond the statutory year.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year,

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial
year.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors,
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly

with any other person.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Dividends on equity shares declared and paid

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 1,657.25 -
2024 (Rs. 3.85 per share)
First interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 430.45 -
2025 (Re. 1 per share)
2087.70 -
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61 Transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

_For March 31, 2025

Name of Struck off Company ‘Nature of transactions with "Balance out;a_m_:hngRelat;onsh;;; withthe |

struck-off Company Struck off Company

Marshall Mercantiles Private Limited* . bokingandDepository 0.00 Trading Client

:_Darkwell Trading Private Limited* Broking and Depository 0.00 TradingClient

Darshana Trading Private Limited ) i ___Broking and Cepository o ] 0 01 Trading Client

Aryarth Housing Finance Limited* -Broking and Depository 0.00 ‘Trading Client .
s Private Limitec i __Broking and Depository o . 0.00 Trading Client

Decent Prosol Private Limited* ,Broking and Depository oo 0.00Trading Client

Jinal Mercantlle Prwate___!__lmlted* i Broking and Depository 3 ) _D_p_g Trading Cllent

‘Plan-WeaIth Financiai Consultancy Brokingand Depositery - Q.00 Trading Client

Wesselton Diamond Private Limited* ~__ _Brokingand Depository 0.00 Trading Cl|ent )
-Pioneer Logical Financial Selutions Private Limited* _Broking and De Ty ) 0. OQ_ Trading Cl|e_§_|_E__ )
Balaji Texfab Private Limited* . bBroking and Depo ry

Synergy Prosol Private Limited* ___.Brokmg__gnd”Depoytog‘y } )

Suman Enclave Private Limited* 7 - -Broking and Depositary o

Vivid Finance & Holdings Pvt Limited* o Broking and Depositary

Shra rments Private Limited* ‘Broking and Depository e .
Orange Capltal Services Private Limited B . Broking and Depository ' ) D 14 Tradmg Cllent
'Pradhan Tradelinks Private Umited* o Breking and Depository o 0.00 Trading Cl|e_n_§

Lohgjit Foundations Private Limited* ~ Broking and Depository __0.00 Trading Client
Vineon Infra Qrganisers Private lelted* __Broking and Depository o } 0 0o Tradmg Cllent
‘Aavaas Integrated Logistics Private L:mlted* R _Braking and Depository

-Rebar Finserve Private Limited Broking and Depository

[Nayat Realty Private Limited® ~~~  ~ Brokingand Depository

‘Kothsons Private Limited Broking and Depository B

‘Secure Success Plan Private Limited* ____Broking and Depository . 0 -Trading Client
_Shimon Commotrade Private Limited* _Broking and Depository ) 0.00 TradingClient .
Enthrills Infotech Limited e Y_Brok!‘n_g and Depository * 0. Dl Trading Clie o
Tigeslily Capital Advisors Private Limited®* o _Broking and Depasitory Y 000 trading Client

G R Medi-Products Limited . Broking and Depository : 072 Trading Client

Jyoti Financlal Consultant Private Limited* .. Broking and Depository . 5.00 Trading Client

For March 31, 2024

.Name of Struck off Company S Nature of transactions with Bénla'ﬁcewou"tstariding Relationship with the
struck-off Company Struck of'f Company
‘Unicron Insurance Advisors Put Lifnited* - Referrai and commissian : 0.00 Vendor

*0.00 indicates amount less than 0.01 million
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{A} During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested
funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shali directly or indirectly fend or invest in cther persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

{B) During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has nof received any fund from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 'Funding Party
(Ulimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Subsequent events

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 27, 2025 declared an interim dividend amounting
to Rs. 559.59 million {Rs. 1.30 per share) for the the year ended March 31, 2025 and the same has
been paid on May 27, 2025.

There have been no events or transactions which have occurred since the date of Balance Sheet or
are pending that would have a material effect on the financial statements and requires adjustment
to the accounting estimates and disclosures included in the financial statements at that date or for
the year then ended, other than those reflected or fully disclosed in the financial statements.

No events have occurred that are of such significance in relation to the Company’s affairs to require
mention in a note to the financial statements in order to make them not misleading regarding the
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows or changes in equity of the Company.

The Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on
August 5, 2022 relating to maintenance of electronic books of account and other relevant books
and papers. The Company's books of accounts and relevant books and papers are accessible in
India at all times and backup of accounts and other relevant books and papers are maintained in
electronic mode within India and kept in servers physically located in India on daily basis.
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The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of prior year{s} has been preserved as per
the statutory requirements for record retention.

66

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ re-classified wherever necessary and the impact, if

any, are not material to the financial statement.

As per our report of even date attached

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

ch;w‘r/‘”‘ -
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Partner
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Mumbai
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Executive Director
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Din: 00387505
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Noh Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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